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DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-S00-852-334S ExL 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 6, 2022
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State Housfe
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County (VC#177200-B004), Dover, NH, to continue providing a Coordinated Entry Domestic
Violence Program to individuals and families who are fleeing, or are attempting to flee, domestic
violence, and who are at risk of homelessness, or experiencing homelessness, by increasing the
price limitation by $239,930 from $479,860 to $719,790 and extending the completion date from
October 31, 2022 to November 30, 2023. effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020, item #21
and amended with Govemor and Council approval on May 5, 2021, item #13.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and Justified.

05-95-42^23010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING > SHELTER PROGRAM
State

Fiscal

Year

Class I

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $159,954 $0 $159,954

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $239,930 $0 $239,930

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $79,976 $0 $79,976

2023 074-500585
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
TBD $0 $139,960 $139,960

2024 074-500585
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
TBD $0 $99,970 $99,970

Subtotal $479,860 $239,930 $719,790

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citiuns to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable CouncQ

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Coordinated Entry Domestic
Violence Program to individuals and families who are fleeing, or are attempting to flee, domestic
violence and who are at imminent risk of homelessness. or experiencing homelessness. The
Department is seeking to extend the contract beyond the completion date and available renewal
options in response to a funding directive from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

Approximately 300 individuals and families will be senred annually.

The Contractor will identify and engage unsheltered individuals and families experiencing,
or at imminent risk of. homelessness, who are fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence,
by providing support and immediate interventions that assist with urgent physical needs.

The Contractor will continue facilitating movement of participants to shelter and permanent
housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize
participants' abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their
efforts to address the problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive
and strategic manner.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Reviewing data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter
and housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families in
unsafe or potentially deadly situations and without a safety net. Additionally, the Department will
be incompliant with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for these
and other types of homeless and permanent housing supportive services.

Area served: New Hampshire Balance of State Continuum of Care

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NH0121D1TOO(XXXXTBD).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lon^. Shibinette ^
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Project contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020, (Item #21), as amended on May 5, 2021 (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1, Subsection 1.1., the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

November 30, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$719,790

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, by adding Subsection 1.15.,
to read:

1.15. The Contractor shall facilitate file reviews conducted by the Department onsite or remotely,
as determined by the Department, on an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the
Department, which may include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved
line items as specified in Exhibit C-1 Amendment #2 Budget, and as defined by HUD under
the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject to the
availability of sufficient funds.

5. Modify Exhibit C-1 Amendment #1 Budget, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1 Amendment
#2 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

w
SS-2021-BHS-02-COORD-01-A02 Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Contractor Initials_^_^^^^^^
A-S-1,0 Page 1 of 3 Date
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Al) terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/7/2022

Date

—DocuSlgn«d by:

^  cgooeocoiixMio...—

Name:^^^®" Hebert
Title: Division Director

1/7/2022

Date

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

—DocuSlgntd by:

Mm foJ/kvr
68106kDCC6C»46Er; ,̂

Name: Betsy Andrews Parker

Title: (-E0

SS-2021-BHS-02-COORD-01-A02 Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuStgn«d by:

1/10/2022

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SS-2021-BHS-02-COORD-01-A02 Community Action Partnership of Stratford County

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-1 Amendment 112 Budget

ICE DV, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
CoC Funds NH0121D1T001900 & NH0121D1T002001 ft NH012101TOO(XXXXTeD)

SFY21- 11/1/20-6/30/21
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity N8iT>e BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Suppontv* SarNices S  iS3.33T S S S S S %  162,337 6 • S

Admlnisuation S  7,SIT s $ s S s %  7,617 6 • $

2S% Ftogulred IMch S  4t,S03 s s $  41,603 s S S • S

TOT AC HUO FUNDS/BALANCE t  201.t47 I » t  41,603 S s t  160,054 $ • 6

SFY22 - 7/1/21-6/30/22

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive SenAces S  22S.505 % S s s s S  228,603 s • s

AdministrKion S  11.42S t ■ s s s t S  11,426 6 ■ %

25% Required Match S  62.830 s s S  62,630 s S S - s

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE t  302,760 s s S  62.630 s t S  230.030 s - t

SFY23 ■ 7/1/22-6/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supporthe Services S  200.463 6 6 6 6 - 6 S  200,463 s • 6

Administration $  10,473 6 $ 6 6 - $ S  10,473 s - S

25% Required Metch S  57.602 6 6 6  67,602 6 6 s • S

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S  277.636 S 6  ' t  67,002 S - S t  210,036 $ • 6

SFY24 - 7/1/23-11/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive SerAces 6  05.2t0 S S 6 S ■ 6 6  06,210 S • $

Administration 6  4,700 6 " s 6 s - 6 6  4.760 6 • 6

25% Required Match 6  26,163 S s 6  26,163 6 S $ 6

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 6  126,163 $ s 6  26.163 6 - 6 6  00.070 S S

TOTAL - 11/1/20-11/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supponhe Services 665.615 6 6 6 6 6 6  666,615 6 - 6

Administration 34.275 $ 6 6 6 6 6  34,276 $ - 6

25% Required Match 166.617 s" $ S  188,617 S 6 6 • S

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE 006.307 % 6 1  166,817 6 6 S  716,700 S - 6

Total W/0 Match t 7ie.7B0

Community Action Partnership o( Strafford County

Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Program

SS-2021-BHS-02-COOR0-01-A02

Exhibit C-1 Amendment >2 Budget

Coniractorinitiais,

Page 1 of 1
1/7/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PARTNERSHIP OF STRATFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 25, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is In good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65583

Certificate Number; 0005337935

nn-

<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Sea! of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . ^ Jean Miccolo , hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

llama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on October 20_. 2021. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Betsey Andrews Parker, CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:,
gnature of ected Officer

ame: Jean Miccolo

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



AC^b' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

01/06/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

CGI insurance. Inc.

5 Dartmouth Drive

Auburn NH 03032

contact Xeri Davis

(866)841-1600 (866)574-2443

AOMESS- T03Yls@CGIBusinssslnsurance.com
INSURER(S)AFFOROiNQ COVERAGE NAICe

INSURERA Hanover Insurance Company 22292

INSURED

Community Action Partnership of StrslTord County

DBA; SlrafTofd CAP

577 Central St. Ste 10

Dover NH 03820

INSURERS Eastern Alliance 10724

INSURER C
Philadelphia Indemnity

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 21-22 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THSin I>6ucyeFf
TYPE OP INSUR

XDDUSUBR POUCVEXP
IMWDO^YYYlLTR ANCE

JUSD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DOWYYY) UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILFTY

CLAIMS-MADE j ̂  OCCUR

Abuse & Molestation Liab $1M

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMACE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea oeeunwol

ZHVA192135 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

ME0eXP(Anyon«pw»oo)

PERSONAL SAOV INJURY

_GEN\ AGGREGATE UMfTAPPUES PER:

POLICY □
OTHER:

X PRO
JECT □LOO

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Professional Liability

1.000,000

100,000

10,000

1,000.000

3,000,000

Included

S 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE UASajTV

ANY AUTOX

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMTT
fE» ■cdd«nt> S 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (P«r p«non)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEIXILEO
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

AWVA156930 07/01/2021 107/01/2022 BODILY INJURY (Par accWwi)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Pif Acddontl

Medics! Payments S 5,000

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO X

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 4,000,000

UHVA192136 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 AGGREGATE 4,000,000

RETENTION S
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- UABILTTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
{Mandatofy in NH)
If yai. daacriba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

Y/N

H
STATUTE

OTH-
gR

03-0000113794-04 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LMfT 1,000,000

Directors & Of^cers
EPLI and Crime Included PSP1638786 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

Per Occurence

Aggregate Limit
Employee Dishonesty

$3,000,000
$6,000,000
1,0001,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, AddlUonal Ramarka SehaduU. may ba attachad M mora apaca la raqulrad)

Workers Comp 3A State: NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH.DHHS

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301-3857
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



MISSION

To educate, advocate and assist people
in Stratford County to help meet
their basic needs and promote

self-sufficiency

eomawatty

O

PARTNER SHIP

of strafford County

VISION

Working to eliminate poverty in
Strafford County

,
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To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate
Dover, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County {a New Hampshire nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
and Affiliate as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 4, 2021, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

0'

November 4, 2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depreciation
Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2020

$  1,316,311

2,268,903

38,400

226,233
^318

3,886,165

5,326

5,273,321
27,500

5,306,147

2019

$  1,068,744

1,525,775

68,100

19,510
12,570

2,694,699

5,350

4,815,150
27,500

4,848,000

$  9,192,312 $ 7,542,699

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payable $  105,377 $  105,432

Current portion of long term debt 18,343 -

Accounts payable 1,497,685 455,276

Accrued payroll and related taxes 88,682 193,430

Accrued compensated absences 131,108 84,272

Deferred revenue 107,606 -

Refundable advances 473,291 491,025

Paycheck Protection Program 97,500 -

Other current liabilities 1,318 4,955

Total current liabilities 2,520,910 1,334,390

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2,775,919

5,296,829

3,593,917
301,566

3,895,483

2,566,846

3,901,236

3,330,373
311,090

3,641,463

$  9,192,312 $ 7,542,699

See Notes to Financial Statements

3



COMMUNtTY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising
Gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Workforce development

Without Donor

Restrictions

11,412,231

1,544,770

15,255

451,985

630,948

103

64,423

2,000

14,121,715

With Donor

Restrictions

265,181

14,386,896

4,470,403

2,258,463

2,063,659

2,920,930

1,347.740

92,113

255,657

255,657

(265,181)

(9,524)

Total

$  11,412,231

1,544,770

15,255

707,642

630,948

103

64,423

2,000

14,377,372

14,377,372

4,470,403

2,258,463

2,063,659

2,920,930

1,347,740

92,113

Total program services

Supporting activities

Management and general
Fundraising

13,153,308

894,695

75,349

13.153,308

894,695

75,349

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

14,123,352

263,544

3,330,373

(9,524)

311,090

14,123,352

254,020

3,641,463

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  3,593,917 $ ^1.566 $ 3,895,483

See Notes to Financial Statements



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services

Energy assistance

Housing

Weatherization

Workforce development

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE NONCASH

CONTRIBUTION

NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

$  8,385,228

2,026,319

9,385

492,204

699,583

335

25,334

11,638,388

585,065

12,223,453

/

4,467,961

1,084,934

2,382,868

310,583

1,894,803
134,487

10,275.636

834.730

93,752

11.204,118

1,019,335

1,003,996

2,023,331

1,307,042

With Donor

Restrictions

240,031

240,031

(585,065)

(345,034)

(345,034)

(345,034)

656,124

Total

$  8,385,228

2,026,319

9,385

732,235

699,583

335

25,334

11,878,419

11,878,419

4,467,961
1,084,934

2,382,868

310,583

1,894,803
134,487

10,275,636

834,730

93,752

11,204,118

674,301

1,003,996

1,678,297

1,963,166

$  3,330,373 $ 311,090 $ 3,641,463

See Notes to Financial Statements



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

Child Community Energy Workforce Total Program

Intermediate

(Allocation)

Management

and

Services Services Assistance Housina Waatherlsatlen OevelQDment Services Pools General Fundralsfna Total

Payrol S 2.297,109 S  540.656 S  227,785 S  229,407 S  120.613 S 47.695 S 3.463.665 S  102.641 S  561.412 s 26.546 S 4.156,466
PayroR taxes 164,239 44.386 17.229 18.357 8.211 3,599 276.023 7.997 26.065 2.153 312,236
Fringe benefits 226.396 14.662 32,476 11.346 15.430 6.999 307.529 5,789 25,605 1.690 340,613
Weatherizatktn material, fuel

and client assislartce 41.758 64.176 1.651,570 2.502.656 1.143.419 4.266 5.426.045 . . . 5.428.045
In-kind expenses 200.565 430.363 . . . . 630.948 . . . 630,948
Consultants and contract labor 252.203 119.717 10,453 32.780 4.516 515 420.164 22.527 62.335 4.410 529,456
Consumable supplies 226.999 745.567 1.206 2.043 6.439 89 962.345 192.667 23.971 3.551 1.202,534
Rent 465.693 65.622 56.320 31.362 8.404 20,860 670.461 (526.032) 30.668 2.394 177,531
Repairs and maintenance 72.495 47.614 13.376 11.090 6.409 752 151.938 214.923 10.523 6.660 386,264
Utilities 120.444 12.453 12.220 23,703 2.569 3.250 174.639 (24,910) 21.270 760 171,759
Insurance 78.166 6.499 1,234 28,753 3.877 854 119.205 13,986 7.666 158 141,039
Meetings, events and training 60.027 21.506 204 160 8.636 . 90.557 215 7.122 1,276 99,170
Depreciation 74.321 26.663 391 4,621 4.326 2,320 112.644 . 69.956 . 162,800
Travel 35.896 6.534 202 477 3.722 500 47.331 (16.292) 1.145 158 30,342
Copying and postage 31.050 592 6.612 262 260 217 36.993 . 4.334 5,201 46,528
Retirement 11.943 3.321 1.015 1.271 314 177 16.041 257 4.764 113 23,175
Equipment and computer 10.001 41.181 11.161 20.307 1.664 20 64.334 2.350 2.276 70 89.030
Interest expense 79,974 5,128 17.616 2.005 8.649 . 113.772 2.166 15.343 1,056 132.339
Other program support 1.082 20,799 365 90 76 • 22.434 3,512 196 14,731 40,875

Total expenses S 4.470,403 S 2,256,463 S 2,063.659 S  2,920.930 S  1.347.740 $ 92.113 S 13.153,308 S S  894.695 s 75,349 S 14.123,352

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNgRSHtP OF STRAFFORD CQUMTY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

Intennftdiate Management

Child Community Energy Workforce Total Program (Allocation) and

Services Services Assistance Housino Weatherization Daveiooment Services Pools General Fundralsino Total

Payroll S  2.189,019 S  354,869 S  277.226 $  61,885 $  110.799 i  78,252 S 3,072,050 S  106.649 $  441,704 S 36,580 $  3,656,983

Payroll taxes 164.122 27,441 20.586 4,333 7,274 5,911 229,667 8.416 48,879 2,813 289,775

Fringe benefits 188.748 25,710 36.852 6,034 12.536 9,765 279,645 7,497 22,254 4,853 314,249

Weatherization material, fuel

and client assistartce 46.338 16,514 1,950.305 158,775 1,685,131 1,499 3,858,562 . - - 3.858.562

In-kind expenses 290.676 404,468 . . 500 . 695.644 -
- 3,939 699,583

Consultants and contract labor 263.688 23,990 3.026 15,403 1,110 819 308.036 17.231 93,118 4,995 423,380

Consumable supplies 372.577 115,909 1.105 5,413 5,023 1,607 501.634 25.407 30,977 1,768 559.786

Rent 410.129 26,747 53,052 28,011 6,739 24,103 548,781 (439,922) 28,681 1.649 139.189

Repairs and maintenance 29,287 14,801 9,078 3,639 359 1,478 58,642 132,983 12,568 134 204.327

Utilities 111,389 6,161 12,460 11,403 2,072 5,753 149,238 (12,262) 17,018 517 154.511

Insurance 96,469 5,697 1,699 5,036 1,959 1,128 111,988 11.349 15,137 207 138.681

Meetings, events and training 98,054 17,231 2,915 180 14,722 195 133,297 5,029 21,668 2.385 162,379

Depreciation 64,288 29,918 391 4.621 3.607 2,320 105.145 - 69,956 • 175,101

Travel 98,098 9,027 1,157 1.255 5.852 1,158 116,547 (23.504) 10,948 148 104,139

Copying and postage 22,053 528 9,177 115 40 118 32,031 76 3,336 18.958 54,401

Retirement 13,004 1,578 1,331 260 377 192 16,762 267 11,129 252 28,410

Equipment and computer 8,130 452 2,453 1.197 24.129 189 36,550 10,224 4,190 • 50,964

Interest expense -
- . . 10.439 . 10,439 150.560 2,156 • 163,155

Indirect costs . . . - - . . . 945 945

Other program support 1,892 3.893 55 34 2.135 - 8,009 - 66 14,554 22,629

Total expenses S 4.467.961 S  1,084.934 S 2,382,868 S  310.583 S  1,894,803 S  134,487 S 10.275:636 S $  834.730 • s 93,752 $ 11.204.118

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

2020

254,020

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Donated properly and equipment

2019

$  1,678.297

Depreciation 182,800 175,101

Donated property and equipment - (1,003,996)
Gain on the sate of equipment (2,000) -

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (743,128) (419,051)
Contributions receivable 29,700 (4,300)
Tax credits receivable - 250,000

Inventory (206,723) (6,090)
Prepaid expenses (23,748) 45,696

Security deposits 24 -

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,042,409 46,317

Accrued payroll and related taxes (104,748) 31,864

Accrued compensated absences 46,836 (9,812)
Deferred revenue 107,606 -

Refundable advances (17,734) 75,690

Paycheck Protection Program 97,500 -

Other current liabilities (3,637) (74,466)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 659,177 785,250

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment (640,971) (158,292)

Proceeds on sale of equipment 2,000 -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (638,971) (158,292)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings of long-term debt 485,181 -

Payments made on long-term debt (257,765) (247,844)

Net repayments on demand note payable (55) (60,000)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 227,361 (307,844)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 247,567 319,114

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,068,744 749,630

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  1,316,311 $  1,068,744

$  130,185 $ 160,999

$  1,003,996

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, teamwork, client focus and professionalism.

Academy Street Family Housing, LLC (Academy Street) is a limited liability
company which is consolidated because the Agency controls 100% of the voting
power of Academy Street. Academy Street leases property from the Agency
under a lease agreement for an annual rent amount of $1. The lease
commenced on April 21, 2020 and expires April 2045. Unless either party serves
the other with a 180 day written notice prior to the expiration of the initial term, at
the end of the initial term, the lease shall be automatically extended for an
additional 25 year term. All significant intercompany items and transactions have
been eliminated from the basic financial statements.

In addition to the Agency's administrative office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington,
Milton, Rochester, Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal,
state, county and local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities,
foundation and charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business
donations, and donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite
board of directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit
and non-profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is
responsible for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the
causes and conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and
community outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The
Agency administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000
people annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAR) of the United States

Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Agency to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor

restrictions in the statement of activities.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and

recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

10



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Unless otherwise indicated, fair values of all reported assets and liabilities that
are financial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

Inventory
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed
value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 - 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $182,800 and $175,101 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

11



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $131,108 and $84,272 at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes

The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes",
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on its information returns for the
previous three tax years and has concluded that no additional provision for
income taxes is necessary in the Agency's financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition Policv

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the

consideration the Agency expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

12



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Advertising Expenses

The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $27,725
and $12,558, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
amounted to $2,156 and has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (See
Note 9).

In-kind Donations

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in
the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was determined to be $177,617 and $177,529 for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be.recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $17,812 and $33,857 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated

.  fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $415,835
and $17,665, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2020. For the year
ended December 31, 2019, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $397,292 and $91,175, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.

13



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses (Continued)

The expenses that are allocated Include the following:

Expense

Salaries and benefits

Occupancy

Depreciation

All other expenses

Method of allocation

Time and effort

Square footage/revenues

Square footage

Approved indirect rate

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced
the most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also
requires expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers.
The Agency adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2020, the first day of
the Agency's fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption
did not result in a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue
streams: as such, no cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue
recognition policy above.

NOTE 2. PROPERTY

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, property consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Land, buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment and machinery
Vehicles

Total

Less accumulated depreciation

Net property

$5,499,660 $5,039,871

646,283 600,526
350.136

6,496,079
1,222.758

327.137

5,967,534

1.152,384

$5,273.321 $4.815.150
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31, 2020
and 2019:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year
Board designated funds

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2020

$ 1,316,311
2,268,903

38,400

2019

$ 1,068,744
1,525.775

68.100

3,623,614 2,662,619

307.315 307.315

$ 3,316.299 $ 2,355.304

The Agency's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

NOTE 4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December 31,
2020 and 2019. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

NOTE 5. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 5. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Total unconditional promises to give were as follows at December 31, 2020 and
2019;

2020 2019

Within one year
In two to five years

$  34,307 $ 38.057

4.093 30.043

S  38.400 $ 68.100

NOTE 6. TAX CREDIT PROGRAM

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority's Tax Credit
Program allows New Hampshire businesses to contribute to not-for-profit
community, housing and economic development projects and receive a 75%
New Hampshire state tax credit that can be applied against New Hampshire
business profits, business enterprise and insurance premium taxes. The Agency
did not recognize any revenue through this Tax Credit Program during the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The total cumulative contribution revenue
raised to date is $250,000 as of December 31, 2020.

NOTE 7. PLEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 8, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 9, the
building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement.

NOTE 8. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The note is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at the prime rate
plus 1% which resulted in an interest rate of 4.25% and 5.75% at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The note is collateralized by all the assets of the
Agency.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at December 31, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

2020 2019

4.90% mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings
Bank with interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months for the first ten years. In 2028
principal and interest payments will adjust to
1.50% above the highest five-year Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston interest rate. The mortgage
note payable is collateralized by the building and
leases and rents of 577 Central Ave. $1,929,978 $2,143,096

5.00% mortgage payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund of interest only payments
for 36 months followed by principal and interest
payments for 264 months. The mortgage note
payable is collateralized by the building and leases
and rents of 577 Central Ave. 427,975 474,778

Non-interest bearing note payable to the New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority in annual
payments in the amount of 50% of annual surplus
cash through May 2060 at which time the
remaining balance is due. The note is
collateralized by certain real estate located at 22-
24 Academy Street. 485.181 ;

Total long term debt before current portion of long
term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs 2,843,134 2,617,874

Current portion of long term debt (18,343)
Unamortized debt issuance costs (48.872) (51.028)

Total long term debt $ 2.775.919
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT (continued)

NOTE 10.

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2021 $  18,343
2022 75,657

2023 79,448

2024 83,430

2025 87,612

Thereafter 2.498.644

Total

NET ASSETS

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of
the following:

2020 2019

Summer meals $  44.438 $ 11,914

Building campaign 44,712 27,891

Security deposits 51,584

Whole family 25.846 ■ 163,738

COVID related 111,100

Homeless outreach 5.091

Fuel assistance 55,902 33,995

Weatherization 14,477 3,434

Coordinated entry 8,147

Holiday baskets 3,985

Food pantry 2,521

Special events 3.881

Total $  301.566 $ 311090

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, net assets without donor restrictions consisted

of the following:
2020 2019

Undesignated
Board designated

Total net assets without donor restrictions

18

$3,286,602
307.315

$3,023,058
307.315

$3 593,917 $3.330,373



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 11. LEASE COMMITMENTS

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various leases. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was $143,308 and
$111,043, respectively. Certain equipment is leased by the Agency under the
terms of various leases.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as
follows;

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2021 $ 63,001

2022 31,501

2023 1

2024 1

2025 1

Thereafter 10

Total $ 94.515

NOTE 12. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Ertiployee contributions to the Plan are made at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides a matching
contribution equal to 25% of the employee's contribution up to 5% of the
employee's compensation. Effective April 1, 2016, the Agency instituted an auto
enrollment feature mandating a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching
contributions for the years ended December 31. 2020 and 2019 totaled $23,170
and $28,408, respectively.

NOTE 13. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, approximately
90% and 88%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and state governments. If a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency's programs and
activities.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 14. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

NOTE 15. CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
^  these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period

and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 16. NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

During the year ended December 31, 2019. the Agency received land and
property as a contribution. The contribution was recorded at the fair value of the
land and property, totaling $1,003,996. Additionally, the Agency received
$130,000 from the contributor, resulting in a total contribution of $1,133,996.

NOTE 17. RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE

Subsequent to December 31, 2020, Academy Street entered into four separate
rental agreements for use of their four apartments. The rental agreements
commence in May of 2021 and expire during April of 2022. Monthly payments for
the agreements range from $1,168 to $1,394 and are due the first day of each
month.

The approximate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2021

2022

$  42,800
21,400

Total $  64.200
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 18. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM (PPP) LOAN

During the year ended December 31, 2020 the Agency was able to secure a loan
from the Payroll Protection Program (PPP) offered under the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. The Agency received loan proceeds
In the amount of $97,500.

Subsequent to year end, on July 1, 2021, the Agency received notification of
forgiveness of the Agency's PPP loan in full. The Agency classified the loan as a
current liability in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position
as of December 31, 2020.

NOTE 19. OTHER MATTERS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Agency's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Agency's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it
more challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Agency,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 20. RECLASSIFCATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's financial statements,
which was taken from the December 31, 2019 financial statements, to conform to

the current year presentation.

NOTE 21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year end, the Agency acquired all of the assets and liabilities of
Dover Daycare Learning Center (the Center). Total assets and liabilities acquired
were approximately $369,000 and $264,000, respectively. Since the date of
acquisition, the Agency has been running the operations of the Center. Prior to
December 31, 2020, the Agency received $107,606 from the Center relating to
the sale. This is included in deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS fcontinuedt

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 4, 2021, the date the consolidated financial statements were available
for issuance.

22



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFIHATE

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equtvalenis

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Due from affiliate

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depredation
Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31.2020

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

VMthoul donor restrictions

Vrith donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CAPSC

assets

1.115,739

2.26S,903

38,400

15,000

226,233
36,318

3.700,593

5,326
4.702,919

27,500

4.825.745

S  6.526,338

Acsdemy

Street Family

Housino. LLC

200.572

200.572

480,402

480.402

680,974

Total

1,316,311
2,268,903

38,400

15,000
226,233
36,316

3,901,165

5,326

5,273,321
27,500

5,306,147

$  9,207,312

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Consolidating

Adiustmenta Consolidated

(15.000)

(15,000)

2,290,738

4,627.727

3,597,045
301,566

3,898,611

S  8,526,338

485,161

684,102

(3.128)

(3.128)

2.775.919

5.311.829

3.593.917
301.566

3,895,483

(15.000)

S  1.316.311

2.268,903
38,400

226.233
36,318

3.886.165

5,326
5.273,321

27.500

5,306.147

(15,000) $ 9,192,312

Demand note payable S  105.377 t . S  105,377 i . S  105,377

Current portion of long term debt 18.343 . 18,343 - 18,343

Accounts payable 1.313.764 183,921 1,497,685 - 1,497,685
Accrued payroll and related taxes 88.682 • 68,682 . 68,682
Accrued compensaled absences 131.108 . 131,108 . 131,108

Due to afTiilate - 15,000 15,000 (15,000) .

Deferred revenue 107.606 . 107.606 . 107,606
Refundable advances 473.291 . 473,291 . 473,291
Paycheck Protection Program 97.500 - 97,500 - 97,500
Other current liabilities 1.316 - 1.318 • 1.318

Total current liabilities 2.336.089 198.921 2.535.910 (15.000) 2.520.910

2.775.919

5.296.829

3.593.917
301.566

3.895.483

680.974 i 9,207,312 (15.000) S 9.192,312

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support

In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising
Gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and support

EXPENSES

Program services

^Child services
Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Workforce development

Total program services

Supporting activities

Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

CAPSC

$ 11,412,231

1,544,770

15,255
707,642

630,948

93

64,423

2,000

14.377,362

4,470.403

2.258.463

2,063.659

2,917,792

1,347,740

92,113

13,150,170

894,695

75,349

14,120,214

257,148

3,641,463

$ ^898,611

Academy

Street Family

Housing. LLC

10

10

3,138

3,138

3,138

(3,128)

Consolidated

11,412,231

1,544,770

15,255
707,642

630,948

103

64,423

2,000

14,377,372

4,470,403

2,258,463

2,063,659

2,920,930

1,347,740

92,113

13,153,308

894,695

75,349

14,123,352

254,020

3,641,463

(3,128) $ 3,895,483

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUWrr ACTMX PmrWgRg WP of STTtAFFORO COUMTy

SCHEDULE OF EXFENOmiftES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EHDED DECEMBER it. 20W

FEDERAL ORANTOR/

PASS-THROUOH GRANTORfPROCRAM HTLE

U.S. DtPtnmtnl ot AofkuHurt

Cn4d and Aciiik Ca'c Food Prog'am

Chid Nutriion Cluslec

Sunynet Feed Serwies Piegom lot CMdten

Nsiienal School Lunch Piogram

Food DsiiilMiiion CkiMet

Emcfgencv Food aas«tar>cc Ptogtam (Food Conwrmuieal

FEDERAL

CFOA

NUMBER

I0.SS9

10.SSS

PASS-THROUCH

Slaia o( Hew HampsMra Deparuneni ol Educaibn

Slate ot New Hatnpehire Oepaiuneni Ot Educaibn

Slate ot Hew HatnoaNrt Oeeaitmni ol Educatbn

BoAnap-Uemmack Cotrenunity Aobn PaitncrtMp

ORAWTOR-S WUMBER

iJOt>^

AJ-Rlji ABei School Care Cenlett

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

S  I.020.M2

S2.S72

Total U.S. Oeoannwni el Agnculuie

i),S,.2S£j2m£oj_glJl21!I!!HL£!!iiilti!!.2tJS!28!2S2!
SuppotiHe Housing lot tt>e EUerty

CDBG EnuibmeM Ctanls duster

Cotnrnuniy Oevebptneni Block Cianis r EnlibmeM Grams

Conununey Oevebptneni Bbct Grams / Enlilbmem Giants

CV^Coimnuney Oevebfimem Block Granis/Emabmem Grants

te.lST Dover Housing AuiiienlY

14.218 Cay Ol Dover, New Hampsrbe

14.218 Ciy el Rochester. New Hampshire

14.218 Ceyol Rochester, NewHsmpshke

Dover Housing Authoity

Cky ol Dover

City ol Rochester

cay ol Rochester

20,048

87,224

2S,000

Emergency Sohilbns Gram Program

CV-Emergency Sokjibns Gram Program

14.211

14.231

Stale ol New Hampshira Departrnem ot Heath and Human Sendees

Stale el New Hampshire Departmem ol Healh aib Human Services

0S-«$^-42301O-7S27-IC2-S00731

0MS^2-42301l>-7«27

58.101

18,522

Suppeitn« Housing Program

Supportive Housing Program

Total U.S. Oepanmem ol Housing and Urhan Devebpmete

U.S. Depenment el LaOer

WlOA Clusler

WlOA Adul Program

WlOA Disbcaled Worker Formub Cranls

Total U.S. Oepanmem ot Laoor/WIOA Cbsier

U.S. Deoartmenl 01 Erverav

Wealheruatbn Assistance tor Low-Income Persons

TotN U.S. Depanmern ol Energy

{IS. Deoartmem el the Tteaiunr

Cocenavirus Rehel Fund

Coronewus Relrel Fund

Total U.S. Oepanmem ol Ihe Treasury

U.S. Otoertmem ol Trinioortation

Transi Services Programs Clusler

Enhanced kioorUy ol Semors 8 bdhnduats wch DtsaPileies

Total U.S. Oepanmem el Tiansponatbn

14.235

14.235

17.258

17,278

21.019

21.019

State ol New Hampshire DeparUnenI ot Heath arb Human Sendees

Communty Partners' Bahavtoral HesBi I Setrdces

Southern New Hampahiie Sondcas. Inc.

Southern New Hampshee Sendees. Inc.

Slate ol Maw HempsNn Governor's OOca el Energy 8 Cemmunly Services

Governor's OSbe ol Emergency Reiol 8 Recovery

Governor's OSIce ol Emergency Reiel 8 Recovery

Stale ol New Hampshire Oepattmcnl ol Tranapottalbn

010492-7178-102-0415

Cornnmity Pennors

20IS-0003

201S-0003

01-02-02-024010-7708074400587

NHHFA WMm Shelef

Housbg StaPiBzatbn Fund

Smal Cutavrriy Bus

125.187

2.528.94$

45,889

11,725

U.5. Deeartmeni ol Health 8 Human Services

Agtng Clusler

Specbl Programs br lite Aging • Tide 91. Part 6 ■ Grams lor

Senior Energy

Senbr Traruponaibn 93.044

See Notes to Schedub ol Eipervditurei ol Federal Awarde

Stale ol New Hempshire Division ol EUcrly eib Adut services
StMo Ol Now Hampshire Oepanmem ol HeaBh and Human Services.

Numbn 8 Trarvs, Services

010048-7872-512-0352

05-95-48-48010-78720000-512-500352



COHMUWrfV aCTWM PARTMFBSHtP OF aTBAFFOftP CQUMTV

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER :i. M70

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PAS8.THROUOH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

CRANTon-a NA"e GRANTOR'S NUMBFR

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

Unieirutl. Inlani, Early CxiOhoeO

Homavisaino Ptogram n.«70

Slate of New Hampetiir* DoparUnonl el Healli and Human SerMces. OPH.

BPHCS. Maternal 8 HeaVi Seialon 0S4S-9O-eO201fr489e 235.465

Promoting Sate and StabI* Famdiei n.ss« Slate ol New HampstiA*. OHHS. Division tor CNbren. Youm and Famtoes eS«M«*3-«TieiO-3>T30a(0-t(II4007M-t2l07m 26.699

Temporary Auiaunce lot Needy Fatttlles

Temporary A**i*iatwe tor Needy FanWhes

s).$sa

n.su

Slat* ol Now Hamgsli9e. OHHS. OMston tor CliUren. Yotei and Famtoes

Soialwn New HampsMre Servieei, ine. 11-0HHS-eWW<SP4$

182.845

33.389 198.034

Low-Income Home Energy Aaidianee

Low-Income Home Energy Assdlartee
»).s6a

n.su

State ol New Hamgstide Governor's Otice 0< Energy 8 PMmtog

Stale ol New Hampsnd* Governor's Ofiee ot Energy 8 Ptonnlng

Ot-O2-O2-O24OtO-770S0000-874-S00SS7

0t-O2-O2424O1O-770S0000-87«-$0CIS87

t.919.818

99.978 2.019.594

Communey Service* Bbcl Grant
CV-Communey Service* Blocfc Cram

n.s<»

ts.sts

Stale ol New Hampstwe. C»1HS. OFA

State ol New Hampshire. OHHS, OFA

01IHM5-71«6-0«S-(M15

G-t9Stl*ICOSR

282.528

75.925 359,453
;

Head Stan Cluiier

Head Stan

CV-Heari Sian

93.800

93.800

Oiroct Funding
Oitoct Funding

01CH99e002 8 0tHPOOO7l)2

0tCH998IM2 8 0tHP1W0702

3,291.776

152.000 3.443,778

Maternal and CX*d HeaKX Servicel BMcl Grant to Slates

Stephanie TuOOs Aones Cnru Welare Program

Sociat Services Block Grant

93.99*

93.845

93.887

State of Now Hompshirs. OHHS. OMston tor Chddion. Youth and Famtoes

Slalo e( Now Hampshlra. OHHS. OMston tot Children. Youth and FamMii

Stale el New Hampshka. OHHS. OMston tor Ctildren. Youth and FamSes

05-09S-OM-S1900000-102-500731-90004008

0549S-042-4210IO-298<0000-102-S00734M2108802

0549S-042-42tOtl>-29860000-102-S00734-42l08«03

2,741

3.830

71.371

Toiat U.S. Oepanmeni o' Healli t Hvman Service*
-

5 6.389.995

TOTAL t 11,063.481

NON-FEDERAL

Home Ervergy Assisiartce Program Eversourca Enargy Sorvka Cemparty t 1.324.112

St( Neitt 10 SclMdulo el Eipondllurot e( Fodenl Award*
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principies, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4. FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5. SUBRECIPIENTS

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County had no subrecipients for the
year ended December 31, 2020.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 4, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we'did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

CompUance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

November 4, 2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover. New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibilitv

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Stratford County complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Partnership of Stratford County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Partnership of Stratford County's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

(/

November 4, 2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County were prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are
reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program, CFDA 93.568, Community Services
Block Grant, CFDA 93.569 and U.S. Department of the Treasury, Coronavirus Relief
Fund, CFDA 21.019.

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and 8 programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

8. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None
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jgcommunlty

PARTNERSHIP

of Stratford County

2021 Board of Directors

Alan Brown, Chair

Kristen Collins, Vice Chair
Terry Jarvis, Treasurer
Jean Miccolo, Secretary
Hope Morrow Flynn
Alison Dorow

Petros Lazos

Thomas Levasseur

Don Chick

Cindy Brown
Jason Thomas

Maureen Staples
Tori Bird

Kathleen Sarles

Jessica Pertiello-Bull

Mark Brave

Leah Crouser

Nicki Gearwar

Community Action Partnership of Stratford County
Administrative & Weatherlzatlon Office, 642 Central Avenue, Dover, NH 603-435-2500

Mailing address; P.O. Box 160, Dover, NH 03821-0160

Outreach Offices:

61 Locust Street, Dover 603-460-4237
527 Main Street, Farmington 603-460-4313

Head Start Centers;

62A Whittier Street, Dover 603-285-9460

120 Main Street, Farmington 603-755-2883
55 Industrial Drive. Milton 603-652-0990
150 Wakefield Street. Rochester 603-285-9461
184 Maple St. Ext., Somersworth 603-817-5458
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Daniel D Clark

QUALIFICA TIONS:

•  16yearsofexperienceworking with adukswith mentalillness, substancemisusedisorder, andhousing
instability

Exceptiona I versatility and adaptability.
Dedication and drive asa hard-working individual.
Ability to develop rapport with people of all backgrounds.
Ability to quickly and thoroughly understand and implement new concepts and practices.
Familiarity with Medicare/Medicaid, Child/Adult Protective. Housing, Managed Care, and

VocationalRehabilitation systems.
EXPERIENCE:

11/2020-Current

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH
Shelter Manager
•  Managed The Garrison emergency shelter and Willand Pond Warming Center, serving up to 100 clients
on any given night with 10+staff, including FT, PT, and Per Diem
•  Ensured adequatestaffingcoveragcforbothlocations
•  Collaborated with CAPSC DayCentersiaffonprioritizing andadmittingclieots to The Garrison.
•  Created and enforced shelter regulations andconditionsof admittance
•  Ensured all pertinent information was entered mto statewidcHMlS system
•  SuccessfuUy managedCOVID-19 procedures, resulting in only3 detected positive cases with nospread
to either staff or clients.

•  Provided 24/7on-caUsupporttobothprograms
•  Provided da ily/weekly/seasonal reports to the Tri-Cities municipalities of numberof individuals
utilizing services, city of origin, and estimated cost savings.
•  Acted as primary contact for The Garrison hotel management, Tri Cities EMS providers, county welfare
officers, and other involved parties
•  Managed the requisition ofmeals and donationsprovided by the community
•  Developed a working operationsmanualforthe2021-22warming center
•  Leada multi-organizationalproject to support individuals being displaced by local police

09/2019-11/2020

MalneHealth, Biddeford, ME
Employment Specialist

•  Assisted in the development of the York County Vocationa!Rehabilitation(VR) contractoffice,the
single CRP utilized in York County by the Dept of VR.

Completed clinical duties including intake, assessment,and planning.
Assisted clients with resume development,interview prep, job search and foUow-up plans.
Provided benefits counseling to educate clients on work incentives provided by SSA andDHHS.
Worked closely with VR counselors to ensure client goak were met with set timeframes
Served on the "Remote Working Advisory Council" to develop tools and policies required by the

COVID- 19 pandemic.

10/2017-4/2019

Maine Behavioral Healthcare, Biddeford, ME
Program Manager, Residential and Community Rehabilitation
•  Supervised a team of 3 case managers and 7 residential workers, supporting 22 clients in 3 programs.
•  In residential, provided support to 6 clients ina long-term group home setting, including medication
administration, treatment plan development, annual psycho-social assessment, and coordination with outside
providers.
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•  Id community rehab,provided case management to 16 residents in two supported apartment programs,
including med administration and education, treatment plan development, psycho-social assessment, suicide
assessment, and provider coordination, with the goal of transitioning to full independence.
•  Provided 24/7 clinical on<al) support to aU residential programs on a rotating schedule.
•  Developed and instated department-wide policies and procedures including Client Medication Self-
Administration, Use ofMcdicalMarijuana.ResidentialSuicide Assessment and Safety Planning, and Community
Rehab Admission and Discharge procedures.
•  Participated in an agency-wide planning group to initiate thcZeroSuicide initiative.

10/2012-10/2017

Maine Behavioral Heaithcare, Biddeford, ME

Clinical Case Worker. ACT team
•  Worked within a multidisciplinary team consisting of case managers, an RN, psychiatrists, and
therapists, serving a combined caseload of 60-80 consumers, carrying a primary caseload of 20+.
•  Performed clinical duties including intake/assessment, goal development and iroplementatioD,
discharge planning, referrals, supportive counseling, provider collaboration.
•  Ensuredthatallconsumerneedswere metultile meetingstateandfederairequireroentsanddeadlines.
•  Provided 24/7 clinical on<aU support to all ACT team consumers on a rotating schedule.
•  Successfully started and facilitated a weekly men's mentalhealtb support group.

12/2013-5/2014

Port Resources, Inc, Portland, M£
Assistant Manager, DD Residential

Acted as assistantmanagerfor4 residential programs; with a total of 14 consumers and 40+staff.
Responsible forall payroll, censusmanagement,staffschedullng,andstaffsupervision.
Participated in agency wide pn-call rotation.
Performed direct care, covering all shifts, as needed.
Worked with QA dept, ensuring all consumerneedswere met, within all agency/state requirements
Completed all paperwork in accordance with agency and state mandated timelines.

10/2004-10/2011

Opportunity Alliance, Portland, ME

Community Integration Case Manager (as Youth Alternatives Ingraham)
Woiked on a team of mentalhealthcasemanageis,and with a personal caseload of 30+clients.
Performed all clinical duties Including intake/assessment, goaldevelopmcnt and implementation,

ischarge planning, referrals, supportive counseling, provider collaboration.
Ensured that all clients' needswere met while meetingall stateandfederalrequirementsand deadlines.
Ensured aU program andagcncy productivity requirements were met on a continuing basis.
Worked closely with IT during design and implementation of newpaperless, agency-wide, client

management system.

Acted as an IT super-user and preliminary pointof contact for ITquestions at the program level.
Provided 24/7 clinical on-call support to all areas of the agency on a rotating schedule.

In-Home Support (as Ingraham)
Worked with a team ofmentalhealth case managers, with a personal caseload of 30+clients.
Provided in-home skills development services as identified on case manager created service plan.
Attended appointments whh outside providers, including medical, psychiatric, therapeutic, housing
related, legaI, insurance,and childcare providers.
Ensured thatall clients' needswere met while meetingall stateandfederalrequirementsand deadlines.
Ensured that all program andagency productivity requirements were met on a continuing basis.

Crisis Support (as Ingraham)
Worked in an eight bed, short stay crisis stabilization unit.
Provided daily support for adults with mentalillness in crisis asanaltemativetohospitalization.
Administered andmonitoredmedicationsandvitalsigns asdirected bystaffpsychiatrist.
Completed all paperwork required, including intake/assessment, service plan development and
implementation, referrals, discharge planning, and financialmanagement.



OocuSign Envelope' ID: 3C470176-8B8CM70C-A9BC-3AE3DCD89632

EDUCATION, MEMBERSHIPS, AND CERTIFICATIONS:

University ofSouthcm Mainc-BSW to be completed in 2022
HolbrookJr. Sr. High School, Holbrook, MA -HS Diploma - Graduated 1995
American Mensa • Member- 2009 • Current

MHRT/C

ACRE Certified

Work and Benefits Navigator
Progressive Employment
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CYNTHIA LYNN JOHNSON

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire, Durham, New Hampshire September 1989 - May

1993 Bachelor of Science, Child and Family Studies

EXPERIENCE

Waypoint, Dover, New Hampshire Case

Manager/Family Therapist

February 2019-September2021
•  Provided case management and support to families involved in the DCY? system

•  Home visiting with a focus on psychoeducation on trauma, parenting skills, case management, and
connections to local resources.

•  Case planning and treatment plan writing, using evidenced based praaices.

•  Provide monthlyreportstoreferrihgagencyandcourtreviews.

•  Attend court hearings, school meetings, and other necessary events.

•  Ability to work independently and as a team.

Haven, Rochester, New Hampshire

Family Violence Prevention Specialist

January 2017-January 2019
•  Provide direct services to support clients impacted by domestic and sexual violence

•  A liaison with DCYF to improve response to families who have cooccurrence of domestic

abuse and child abuse/neglect involvement.

•  Supervise AmeriCorps Volunteers

•  Answer 24 hr crisis line during ofBce hours and on call .shifts/holidays

•  Provided resources and referrals to other agencies

•  Provided assistance with restraining order and DOVE attorney process

•  Accompaniment to court, hospitals, CAC, and police stations

Dover High School Dover, New Hampshire Kio^ Worker
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August 2015-January 2017

•  Monitor entrance of the building; including recording of lace student arrivals and ensuring
safety of public access

•  Monitor student behavior in the building and prevent truancy

•  Work in partnership with administration, staff, and school RO

Dover Children's Home. Dover, New Hampshire

Supervisor- Temporary position
June 29,2016-Aug 1,2016

•  Supervised and trained full dme and relief staff

•  Coordinated care for residents

•  Participated in weekly staff meeting and Supervisor Meeting

Relief Woricer

July 2010-July 2020

•  Direct care with youth-assisting with everyday skills and responsibilities.
•  Supervising multiple youth in the home and community.

•  Coordination with family and referring agencies,

•  Medication dispensation

Independent Living Coordinator

June 2008-July 2010

•  Coordinator of Pilot House Program- residential program for young adults transitioning into
independent living.

•  Developed Freedom Plan, completed State of NH Independent living paperwork and
instmcted NH Trails for each resident.

•  Assisted with school enrollment and employment search.

•  Life skills counselor: interviewing skills, appointment making, grocery shopping, cooking,
finances, apartment care, and safety.

•  Connected residents with community resources and programs.

•  Attended weekly staff meetings and worked with a team of multiple case managers in the
main building.

Somersworth School Department, Somersworth,New

Hampshire

Malley Farm Boys Home Tutor
January 2001 - June 2006

•  Assisted youth with homework, GED prep work, and organizational skills job searching and
filling out of applications.

Eckerd Youth Alternatives, Colebrook, New Hampshire
F amily W orker/Afterc are Worker
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January 1996- February 2000/ May 2002- September 2003

*  Facilitated all aspects of placement from initial interview through reintegration into the

community.

*  Responsible for all reports, assessments, and treatment plans

*  Advocated on behalf of clients and their families with schools, therapists, employers, and

community resources.

*  Performed home visits to provide families with education and support.

*  Instructed Parent Groups and Independent Living Skills classes. '

*  Qianged position from Family Worker to Aftercare Worker in July 1999 in order to work

more directly with the clients. Returned to the program as a Family Worker in May of 2002.

Juvenile Services, Dcnrer and Rochester, NH -Grant Funded

Through VNA

Juvenile Services Assistant

September 1995- January 1996
*  Performed pre-dispositional investigadons in order to assess needs of clients and families

*  Prepared court reports and attended court hearings.

*  Conducted supervision and facilitated placement when necessary.

The Key Program Inc., Dover. NH

Outreach Caseworker

April 1994- August 1995

*  Provided intensive tracking services to monitor adolescent client's behavior and

accountability at home and in the community.

*  Performed on call duties to provide 24-hour crisis intervention and support.

*  Advocated on behalf of clients/families, completed reports, assessments, and treatment plans

*  Organized and instructed life skills groups and supervised group activities.

A Safe Place, Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Direct Service Advocate

September 1992-June 1993

*  Advocated for and empowered women and their children

*  On call shelter and court advocate

*  Answered hotline from home

SKILLS
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•Able to work independently

•Responsible

•Organized and efficient

•Positive and supportive team member

•Compassionate

•Solution focused

•CPR certified
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Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Daniel Clark Director of Housing and
Homeless Services

81,250 5% 4062.50

Cynthia Johnson Program Manager 57,200 100% 57,200

TBH DV Case Manager 50,752 100% 50,752

TBH DV Case Manager 50,752 100% 50,752
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L«ri A. Shibinene

Commbdoner

Chrbdnc U Santanldlo

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CO.NCORD.NH 03301
603-27I-9474 1.800-8S2034S Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-73S-2964 \vww.dhhs.nh.eov

March 23. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County (VC#177200-B004), Dover, NH to continue providing a Coordinated Entry
Domestic Violence Program to individuals, youth, and families who are fleeing, or are attempting
to nee, domestic violence, and who are at risk of homelessness or experiencing homelessness,
by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $239,930 from
$239,930 to $479,860 and extending the completion date from June 30,2021 to October 31.2022
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020, item #21.

Funds are available in the following account for Slate Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available In ,State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon .the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42^23010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $239,930 ($79,976) $159,954

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $239,930 $239,930

2023 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

TBD $0 $79,976 $79,976

Total $239,930 $239,930 $479,860

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The Dcporlment of Health and Human Services' Mitsion it to join communities wid fiimiliet
in providing opportunities (or citUens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Surujrtu
end the Horwrsble Council

Page 2 of 2

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Coordinated Entry Domestic
Violence Program to individuals, youth, and families who are fleeing, or are attempting to flee,
domestic violence.

Approximately 600 individuals, youth, and. or, families who are fleeing, or are attempting
to flee, domestic violence, who are at imminent risk of homelessness or experiencing
homeleesness. will be served from November 1.2020 to October 31. 2022.

{  ' *

The Vendor will identify and engage unsheltered individuals, youth and families
experiencing, or at imminent risk of. homelessness, who are fleeing, or attempting to flee,
domestic violence, by providing support and immediate Interventions that assist with urgent
physical needs.

The Vendor will continue facilitating movement of participants to shelter and permanent
housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize
participants' abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities In their efforts
to address the problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and
strategic manner.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information:

• Annual reviews relating to comptiance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information. as v^ll
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry Into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1..
Paragraph 1.1., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for
up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is extending
contract services for one (1) year and four (4) months of the two (2) years available at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families in
unsafe or deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, if data is not collected, as required
by this contract, the Department will be Incompliant with federal regulaticr^, which could result in
a loss of federal funding for these and other types of homeless and permanent housing supportive
services.

Area senred: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0121D1T001900, NH0121D1T002001

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C470176-888CM7X-A9BC-3AE3DCD89632

OocuSign Envelope ID: EFEC0F36-S619-4F82-98F8^2A0AAE19E7C

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Project contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Community
Action Partnership of Slrafford County ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24,2020, (Item #21), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provistons, Paragraph 1. Subparagraph 1.1., the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of sen/ices to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date; to read:

October 31, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$479,860.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1 Amendment #1, Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Contractor Initials '

SS-2021-BHS-02-COORO-01-A01 Page i of 3 Date
21
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/16/2021

Date

—OeeuSigA*4 »ir

Name:W^t^"e santantello
Title; Di rector

3/18/2021

Date

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
■0«<u>lQn*4 by;

ftAiVr
Parker

Title: CEO

Communily Adlon Partnership
of Strafford County

88-2021 •BHS-02-COOROO1 -AO 1

Amendment #1

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/16/2021

Date TTaTner^"*®^"®
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Partnership Amendment #1
of Strafford County

SS-2021-BHS-02-COORD-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
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ICf OV. Cenwnvnltv Action tartncnMp ol Stnffore County
CoC tun«l NH0121D1T00)900 A NHOtllOlTQOZOOl

SFY21 • ll/l/2(K/30/21
eo&r

Acthrlty Namt BUOG£T riD UONTMLr BUOCET YTD UOMTHLY BUDGET VTD HOKTHLY

SuoperM SonAcM IM.M7 1 1 1 t • 1 1 1 • 1

AOmManoen '.iir 1 1 1 ( • * 1. 7.««7 1 • 1

23H Rooutrod Matcn 4i.an I 1 1  aun * 1 1 • 1

rtTTAL HUB VUUO);nAUMCe »I.M7 1 t 1  «iAO> t • » »  1M.«04 1 • »

SFY12 • 7/1/21-E/30/22

TOTAL PROGRAM COST BHS SHME

A«t>vttY Namt BUDGET YTD UOWTHLY BUDGET YTD MOMTMLY BUDGET YTD MOKTKLY

auooeftro Barvte— 1  m,tes 1 t 1 s. 1 t  »tj« 1 • t

AomMitraUon t  >t,4U t t a « • S •  ll.4» t ■ •

2i% HoQidrM Maicn t  n,aM 1 % 1  a.iM t » 1 ■ •

TOTAL HUO FUNOaiDALANCE 1  MLTOa » » t  a.aM 1 ■ 1  . • 1 ' 230.010 1 • 1

SFy23 • 7/1/22-10/31/22

VdVALiiHMAAU COST CdNYAAtYdR m SNARB

AetMty Namt BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

SuOOontra SarrtCM TAtaa 9 t 9 9 • 9 9  70.100 9 ■ 9

MmfnarHjon l.oei • 1 9 9 • 9 9  3.000 9 1

23% Requlrtd Uaien lO.M 1 1 9  ».04« 9 9 9 9

TOTAL MUD TUNDS/UALAMCE 100.071 1 3 9  TO.taa 9 ■ 9 9  ' 70.970 9 • 9

TDTAL • 11/1/20-10/31/22,

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SNARE BHSSHARE

AetMtv Namt BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY euOCET YTD MONTHLY

SupBOtNo SonAeat 497.010 t  • •• 9 9 9 • 9 9  '437.010 9 9
a ■M M ■ ■

AfflWWeeO^ a.tM 1 9 9 9 • 9 9  ».o»e t • 9  . .

23%Ro«MUaKn 123.070 1 9 9  I21A2I 9 9 9 • 9

lU IAL MUU t UMUyVALANLt 0004M s 9 9  I7LC79 9 • 9 9  470.000 9 . 9

TotHmOMMCh 1 47«JM

CominunliT AciSon ̂ innc'thip ol Stnllotd County

CoorOintied Enuy Domeiik VWcnce Piotrcm

SS-}0})-»»«.<l2-COOItO-OI-AOI

UNM C-l Afflondmtni ll Bud|(l

Conltactor miilai0M
^a|t I of 1

P

3/18/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3C470175-8B80-470C-A9BC-3AE3DCD89632

OocuSJgn Envelope ID: EFEC0F36-561O-4F82-9BF6-62A0AAEigE7C

.JUN10'20 MlV'OO DflS

Lofl A. SblWsrti*

Ceoalufonn

ChHtHM U Saauntell*
IMrccter

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STRECT. CONCORD. NH 03301

603.271.9474 I40O4S2-334S EtC 9474

Fti: 603.171.4230 'TDD Ak«u: 1.800.735.2964 www.dbhi.nh.tev

June 4.2020

Hio -Excellency, Oovemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices. Division of Economic end
Housing Stability, to enter Into a Sole Source contract with Community Action Partnership oif
Stratford County (VC#177200-^B004). Dover, NH In the amount of $239,930 for the provision of a
Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Program to Individuals: youth, and faniilies who are fleeing,
or are attempting to flee, domestic violence, and who are at risk of homelossness or experiencing
homelessness. through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, with the option to renew for up
to two (2) additional years, effective July 1-, 2020 or upon .Governor and Council approval,
whichever Is later, through June 30. 2021.100% Federal founds.

Funds are available in the following account for Slate Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation through.the Budget Office. If needed end
justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUfi/IAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUStNG. HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State.
Fiscal Year

Class f

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $239,930

Total $239,930

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
spaclfy each vendors name during the annual, feddral Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued. Annually, the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a Continuum of Care Program, Notice" of
Funding Available (NOFA), competilive application process. As part of this process, the
Department Is required to provide HUD with each potential vendor, and HUD evaluates vendor
applications. Based on thai evaluation process, HUD directs the Department to provide grant
awards and the specific amounts to vendors.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The purpose of this request is to provide a Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Program
to individuals, youth, and families who are fleeing, or are attempting to flee, domestic violence.
The Vendor will Identify and engage unsheltered individuals, youth end families experiencing, or
at imminent risk of. homelessness. who are fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence,
providing support and immediate interventions that assist individuals with urgent physical needs.

Approximately 300 individuals, youth, and. or, families who are fleeing, or are attempting
to flee, domestic violence, who are at imminent risk of homelessness or experiencing
homelessness, will be .served from July 1. 2020to June 30. 2021.

'  The Vendor will facilitate movement of participants to shelter artd permanent housing while
providir>g conr^ectlons to community and mainstream services in order to maximize participants'
abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
established the Contir^uum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to address the
problems of housing end homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and strategic manner.

The Department will rnonitor contracted services using the following methods and tools;
• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual

agreements.
•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information end income

and expense reports, to Include match .dollars.
•  Reports that are available through the timely and accurate entry of data Into the New

Hampshire Homeless Management Information System.

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1.
Paragraph 1.1, of the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for
up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon sstisfectory delivery of services, available funding,'
agreement of the parlies and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor, and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing optior^s and supporliye services available, leaving vulnerable individuals artd families In
unsafe or deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally. If data is not collected, as required
by this contract, the Department will be Incompliant with federal regulations, which could result In
a loss of federal funding for these and other types of homeless and permartent housing supportive
'services.

Area served: New Hampshire Balance of State Continuum of Cere

. Source of Funds: CFOA #14.267, FAIN ffNH012101T001900

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this prograrri.

RespepduUy submitted

Lorl A. Shiblnette

Commissioner

Tht Dtperlmtnl of HtoUh ond Hitmon Strwni' Miooion it to join eommuniiitt and fo/nilit»
iit providing oppertuniiiet for citiztnt to odiitve hcoUh ond indtpendtnet.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: Coordinated Entry Domesiic Violence Proied fSS-202l-BHS«02-COORD'0n

Notice: This agreement and all of its aiiachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any informition thai is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the coniraci.

agreement

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor haeby mutually agree as follows:

. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Siatc Agency Name

New Hampshire Ocpartmeni of Health and Human Services

1.2 ' State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

ConcordiNH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action Partnership of Strafford.County

l.d Contractor Address

577 Central Ave, Suite 10
Dover. NH 038?0

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603)435-2500

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.202!

1.8 Price Limitation

$239,930 '

1.9 Contracilng Officer for Stole Agency

Nathan D. While, Director

I.IO Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1. I I Contractor Signoiu/c 1.12 Name and Title of Conirocior Signatory

f2>^e<Q CtD
1.13 State Agency Signature

Dale: 6/5/20

1.14 Name ajtd Title of State Agency Signatory

Christine Santaniello. Director, DEHS

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel {if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Allomey General (Form, Subsionce and Execution) (ifopplieable)

Catherine Pinos ^ 06/09/20

1.17 Approval by Ihe Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

^  G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Dale:

Page ] of4
Contractor Initials

Date
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2. SERVICCS TO BC PCRFORMCD. The Siafc of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
C'Siale"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") lo perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or ule of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 6 which Is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

y EFFECTJVE OATE/COMPLETIONOFSERVICES.
3.1 Nolwiihslanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of ihc State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and allobligatlons of the parties hcreunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval U required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effeaive on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 C'Efleclive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effcciive Date shall be performed ai the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event thai this Agreement docs not become
elTeciive, the Slate shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, - any obligation to pay ihc
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must compleic all Seviees by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATUREOF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemeni lo the
wntrary, all obligations of the Stale hcreunder, including,
without limiiation, the continuance of payments hcreunder, arc
coniingent upon the avnilnbllliy and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any siotc or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
approprietion or availability of funding for this Agreemeni and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in »cess of such available apprc^riated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated ftinds, the
State shall have the right lo withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the SctvIccs under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or terminalion.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6' in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICETPRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, m^hod of-payment. and terms ofpaymeni
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C.
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of \vhaicvcr nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other thin the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset fiom any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement (hose
liquidated amounts required or pcnnitied by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7«c or any other provision of (aw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to ihe
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall ihe total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMEIVT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Conuactor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county'or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contraclor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, ifthis Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United Slates, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive.orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any nj|», regulations and guidelines as the
State or the Uhited States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the temt of (his Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or tpplicanis for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and .will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit ihe Stale or United Stales
access to any of(he Cpniractor's books, records and accounts for
Ihc purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1.The Contractor shall at its own expense provide pi! personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Service shall be qualifie.d to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed end
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing during Ihe term of
this Agre^enl. and for a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or. other person, firm or
corporation with vt4)om it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform Ihe Services to hire, any person who is a Stale employee
Of official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of (his Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement; the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following ecu or ornissions of ihe
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder C'Event

ofDefiuU'p:
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 (ailuxe to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take anyone, or more, or ctl), of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the.Contreclor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and ifthe Event ofOcfauli is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the.
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be mode under this
Agreement and ordering (hat (he portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as (he State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages Ihe State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give'the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defiult. Peat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof afler
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any furtha or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding para^ph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by Ihiny (30) da^ wrinen notice to the Contractor that
the Stale is exercising its option to terminate (he Agreement. '
9.2 In the event of an cariy terrninstion of this Agreement for
any reason other .than the completion of the Services, (he
Contractor shall, al (he Stale's discretion, deliver (p the
Contracting OfTicer. not later than Hnccn (IS) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to (hose of any Final Report dcsaibed in the attached
EXHIBIT 8. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Conhactor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean.all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
flies, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, piaorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer program's, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
ftnished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which hu been received ftom
the State or purchas^ with funds provided for (hot purpose
under this Agreement, shall 'bc the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agre^ent for'any reason.
10.3 Confidcntianry ofdata shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or'other existing law. Disclosure of data requires

^ prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respe^s
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any b^eflts, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by (he State to its employees.

12. ASSlCNMENT/DELECATlON/SUBCONTRACrS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not ossign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without (he prior written notice, which

* shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (IS) days prior to
(he assignment, and a wrliten consent of (he Slate. For purposes
of thfj paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Ohimgc of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third' party, (ogcther with its affiliates, becomes the
direct,or indirect Owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) Ihe sale of alt or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Stale.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignm^t .agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNI FICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
(he Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or propetty damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, Its officers or employees, which" arise out of (or which
may be clalm^ to arise out of) (he acts or omission of the

Page 3 of4
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Contrecior, or subeontra^ors, including but not limited to the
negtigertde, reckless or tnlenlional conduct. The Stale shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by Ihe Contractor arising under
this pangraph 13. Not^vithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the Scale, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenani in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expertse, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain In force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury,' death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than SI.000,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special causeofloss coverage form covering all properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
S0% of ihe whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies desaibed in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Slate
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Oepartmeni of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certincate(s) of
insur&fl.ce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furirish to the Contracting GfTicer idenlined
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificaic(s) of insurance
(or all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The cerliflcatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
refacncc.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

IS. I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, ceriifics
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 2SI-A ('IVorkers'
ComptnsQlion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure end maintain,
payment of Workeis' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Onicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rene\val(s) .thereof, which shall be
Bitached and (ue incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which mi^t arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' -Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of Ihe Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the olha party
shall be deemed to have been duty delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only ofter approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required

■ under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of Ihe State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successbn
and assigni .The Nvording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by (he parties to express their mutual Intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Courl which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments end amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parlies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in Ihe
interpretation, construction or meaning of Ihe provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the retnalning provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed en original, constitutes the . entire agreement end
understanding bctNvccn the panics, and supersedes ell prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Project

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Complelion of Services. Is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreerrienl for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Dale, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding; agreement of the parties, and appfoval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements vflth all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage. the
subcontractor's performance on an or>going basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide, the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS*2021-BHS-02-COORO-0t Exhlbi) A - ReviStOft* wSl»nd»fd ConVacl Ptov<jlom Conlraciof Inilib '

cuioHics/iiioi* Page 1 ol 1 Oato
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Project

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to approximately 300
individuals, youth, and/or families who are fleeing, or are attempting to flee,
domestic violence (DV), who are at risk of homelessness or experiencing
homelessriess.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available within the Balance of State.
Continuum of Care(BoSCoC).

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall mean
Monday through Friday from (8:00 AM to 4:00 PM). excluding state and federal
holidays.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b). US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD
Office of the Inspector General, and the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any of their authorized representatives, must have the right of access to all
books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to
the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, exarhinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required
retention period, but last as long as the records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH.HMIS)
or into a comparable database, per 24 CFR 578. ■ Programs shall follow NH HMIS
policy, including specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data
entered, and time required for data entry.

1.7. The Contractor shall adhere to federal and slate financial and confidentiality laws,
■  and comply with the approved HUD program application, program narratives.

budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed in the applicable
Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application approved by HUD.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions related to this
contract from representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct
periodic observation and review of performance, activities and an Inspection of
records and documents. .

1.9. The Contractor shall provide services according to the Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) regulations Outlined in Public Law 102-550 and 24 CFR
Part 578 CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1.10. The Contractor shall provide a Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Program that
supports primary goals that include, but are not limited to:

SS-2021-BHS.02-COORD-01 Contractor Initials
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1.10.1. Identifying and engaging unsheltered individuals, youth and families
experiencing, or at imminent risk of, hometessness. who are fleeing or
attempting to flee domestic violence.

1.10.2. Providing support and immediate interventions that assist individuals with
urgent physical needs, including, but not limited to:

\

1.10.2.1. Providing meals.

1.10.2.2. Providing blankets.

1:10.2.3. Providing clothes.

1.10.2.4. Providir>g toiletries.

1.10.2.5. Actively connecting and providing people with information and
referrals to homeless and mainstream programs;

1.10.3. Publicizing the availability of housing and services that are provided and
available within the geographic area covered by the Continuum of Care.

1.10.4. Facilitating movement to shelter, permanent housing and maximum self-
sufficiency.

1.11. The Contractor shall ensure participating individuals, youth and families meet the
definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of homelessness qualifications, as
defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for services.

1.12. The Contractor shall obtain, and retain, appropriate documentation regarding
participant qualifications for services.

1.13. The Contractor shall collaborate vi^ith providers within the Balance of State
Continuum of Care to accomplish objectives that Include, but are not limited to: .

1.13.1. Closing the critical gap between individuals in need of DV services and
the 211 and housing referral systems;

1.13.2. Providing.improved levels of expedited screening, identification and
referral services for individuals In need of OV services;

1.13.3.' Providing- an expanded amount of trauma-informed outreach
coordination between individuals, youth and families needing, DV
senrices, the 211 system, housing providers and victim service providers
within the Balance of State Continuum of Care.

1.13.4. Increasing the percentage of individuals, youth and families in the total
population of clients in need of DV services who are referred to

specialized case management, housing and DV services.

1.13.5. Providing accurate data collection that better informs all stakeholders of
the scope of the DV population and its challenges.

1.14. The Contractor shall participate- in its regional and BoSCoC Coordinated Entry
system.
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2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shaii manage ail confidential data related, to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.2. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits 0 through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract and Grant Completion Date
on the form required, or specified, by the Departrnent. The Contractor shall:

3.1.1. Submit the APR to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

3.1.2. Ensure the APR includes a sumrnary of aggregate results of the Project
Activities, consistent with the format proposed In the Contractor's
application submitted to HUD for the rielevant fiscal year Notice of
Funding Availability (NOFA).

3.2. The Contractor shall submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) policy
and BHS policies and procedures.

3.3. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department, in
a format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and
metrics, including client-level demographic, performance, and service,data.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will monilor Contractor performance through the following
measures:

4.1.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate ■ with the
Department to enhance contract management, improve results, and
adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

•  including annual performance monitoring of all programs.

'  4.1.2. The Contractor shall.abide by the performance measures as set forth In
all applicable HUD regulations including, but not linnited to:

4.1.2.1. 24 CFR Part 578 CoC Program;

^  4.1.2.2. Public Law 102-550; and
4.1.2.3. BoSCoC approved performance measures for annual

monitoring.

4.1.3. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee. may observe
performance related activities and documents under this Agreement.
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5. Contract Administration
I

5.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to adend all meetings or
trainings requested by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality,

• according to state and federal laws. To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the
Contractor of the need to attend meetings five (5) working days in advance of each
meeting.

5.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of'any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of
the change.

6. Additional Terms

6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or couh orders may have an impact on the Services described herein,
the State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement. so as to achieve compliance

.  therewith.

6.2. Culturally and LinguisticaHy Appropriate Services (CLAS)

6.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

8.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership .

6.3.1. ^11 documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other,
rrlaterials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement; "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was finariced under a Contract
with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, with funds provid^ in part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such othpr funding sources as were available or required, e.g.. the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

6.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under.the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use.

6.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

6.3.3.1. Brochures.

6.3.3.2. Resource directories.

6.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

6.3.3.4. Posters.

6.3.3.5. Reports.
S$.202l-BHS-02-COORO-Ol Conlraciof Initials
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6.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department..

6.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance wjth Laws and Regulations

6.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county
and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or
officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the
contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of
the services at such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall
be required for the Operation of the said facility or the performance of the
said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will
at all times comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or
permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor
hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the
facilities sh'all comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements
of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency,
and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

6.5. Eligibility Determinations

6.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/or family, such eligibility verifications shall be rnade in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders,
guidelines, policies and procedures.

6.5.2. Eligibility verifications shail.be made on forms provided, or required by
the Department for thai purpose, and shall be made and remade, or
reissued, at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

6.5.1 In addition to the verification forms required by the Deparlrnent, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each participant of sen/ices
hereunder. which file shall include aH information necessary to support
an eligibility verification and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility verifications that the Department may
request or require.

6.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill -out an'
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing .In accordance with Department
regulations.
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7. Records

7.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

7.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

7.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and svhich are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind.contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

7.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services,-which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of sen/ices and all invoices submitted to the
Department to obtain payment for such services.

7.2. All contract records (originals or copies made by rriicrofilming, photocopying, or
other similar methods) shall be retained for a period of five (5) years after
expenditure of all grant funds from grants under vyhich program participants. were
served, or as required by state or federal law. following completion of the contract
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, and/or until ari audit is completed
and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

7.3. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any pf their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of
units provided for in the^Contracl and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and alt the obligations of the parties hereunder (except
such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end
of the term pf this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall
terminate, provided however, that If, .upon review of the Final Expenditure Report
the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Continuum of Care (CoC) Program, as
awarded on March 13, 2020, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)
#14.267, Federal Award Identification Nuimber (FAIN) #TBD. \

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. -The Department has identified the Contractor ias a Subrecipient in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.414.

2.3. the Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D. In accordance with
2 CFR §200.87.

3." ■ Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved Jine
item, as specified in Exhibit C-1. Budget,

4. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice and required supported documentation in a
form satisfactory to the Stale by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following
morith; which' identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in thd'prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed,
dated and returned to the Department in order to Initiate payment.

5. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department programs
and services, and shall provide such records, and any additional financial
information, If requested by the Department to verify expenses.

6. In lieu of hard copies, alt invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to housinQsuDDortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient funds
are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form Number P-37
of this Agreement.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than thirty (30) days after the
contract completion dale specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8. Scope of Services, in '
compliance with funding requirements.
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10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreernent may be withheld, in whole
or in part, in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit-B,
Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
complian.ce with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

12.. Notwithstanding. Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances •
between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may
be made by written, agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department If any of
the following conditions exist:

13.1. .1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during
the most recently completed fiscal year:

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant.to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. I.ll-b. pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. . Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
perforrr^d by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year,
conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F
of the Uniform. Administrative Requirennents, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition" C exists, the Contractor .shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA vwthin 120 days after the close
of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater thah $250,000 from
the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source,
may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by
an independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination
indicates the Contractor is high-risk.
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13.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
■  understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable
for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all
payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which
have been disallow^ because of such an exception.

14. Project Costs:

14.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean
all expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance
of the Project Activities, as determined by the Stale to be eligible and allowable
for payment in accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

14.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578.39 through 578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five
program components: permanent housing; transitional housing;-supportive
services only; HMIS; and. iri some cases, homeless prevention. Administrative

•  costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to the
restrictions on combining funds for certain eligibte activities in a single project
found in 24 CFR 578.87(c).

15: Match Funds:

15.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD
regulations and policies described iri 24 CFR 578.73.

15.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payn^ent request.

15.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other
sources. Cash match must be used for the cost of activities that are" eligible
under subpart D of 24 CFR 578. The Contractor shall:

15.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to
satisfy the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

15:3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each
matching contribution is counted; .

15.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values
of third party in-kind contributions were derived; and

15.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services

that are supported by the same methods used to support the
allocation of regular personnel costs.
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16. Payment of Prelect Costs:

16.1. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible
and allowable costs as stated in Section 18. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit C. The
Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other
expenses.

16.2. Payrhent of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as
provided through (he U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title
XIV Housing programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public
Law 102-550), in an annount not to exceed as specified in Form P-37. General
.Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation. -

.16.2.1. Comparable Database Requirements and Expense Parameters:

16.2.1.1. Viclim service providers that are .subrecipients of funds requiring
participation in Ihe HMIS, but are prohibited from entering data in
the HMIS, must use a comparable database to enter client
information. A comparable database Is a database that can be used
to collect client-level data over time and generate unduplicated
aggregated reports based on the client information entered. The

■ reports generated by a comparable database must be accurate and
provide the sarrie information as the reports generated by the HMIS.

16.2.1.2. A comparable database rriust be a relational database that meets
all HMIS data standards and meets minimum HMIS privacy/security
requirements. It also must be able to produce the ".csv" files
required by HUD. The subrecipient agency must document th9t the
alternative system meets all HUD system requirements per:

16.2.1.2.1.. httPs://www'.hudexchanQe.info/proqrams/hmis/hmis-
reouirements

16.2.1.3. BHS will not approved expenses beyond the first quarter of the
contract unless substantial, measurable progress has been made in

'  implementation and staff training to fully utilize comparable
database. Progress measurements may include, but are not limited
to:

16.2.1.3.1. A copy of executed contract with Database provider.

16.2.1.4. The contractor shall meet all of the HMIS standards for training,
which are included In the NH-HMIS Policies and Procedures Manual

for the comparable database, located at:

16.2.1.4.1. httos://icanewenQland.helPSCOuldocs.cofin/afticle/49-new-

hamoshire-hm'is-QOvernance-model
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17. Review of the State. Disallowance of Costs:

17.1. At any lime during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the
Annual Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report,
the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all
payments made to date.

17.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not
. determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by written notice, specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Conlraclor of any such disallowance.

17.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall
refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to
this Agreerrient are subject to recapture.

18. Expense Elioibilitv

18.1. Operating Expenses:

18.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

18.1.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing:

18.1.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

1.8.1.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems
of the housing (provided that the payments musi be based on the
useful life of the syslern and expected replacement cost);

18.1.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent
of the units or area Is paid for with grant funds;

18.1.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

18.1.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

18.1.2. Ineligible costs include:

18.1.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

18.1.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only
facilities; and

18.1.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining
and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

18.2. Supportive Services

18.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in
24 CFR 578.53. and are available to individuals actively participating In the
permanent housing program.

18.2.2. Eligible costs shall include:
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18.2.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment
requir^ by 578.63(a) (2);

18.2.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-tinie moving costs
are eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving company:

18.2.2.3. Case ■management. The costs of assessing, arranging,
coordinating; and monitoring the.delivery of individualized services
to meet the needs of the program participant(s) are eligible costs;

■ 18.2.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers, for children from families
experiencing homelessness, including providing meals and snacks,
and comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities are
eligible;

18.2.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic
educational skills are eligible;

18.2.2:6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing
and operating employment assistance and job training programs
are eligible, including classroom, online and/or computer instruction,
on-the-job instruction, services that assist individuals in securing
employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or increasing.earning '
potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to program
participants in employment assistance and job training programs is
also an eligible cost;

18.2.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program
partidpants is eligible;

18.2.2.8. Housing search and"counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible
program participants to locale, obtain, and retain suitable housing
are eligible;

18.2.2^9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed
attorneys, for advice and representation in matters that interfere vwth
homeless Individual or family's abilily to obtain and retain housing;

18.2.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management
skills that may never have been learned or have been lost during
course of physical or mental illness, domestic violence,"substance

. abuse, and homelessness are eligible. These sen/ices must be
necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are
the budgeting of resources and money management, household
management, conflict management, shopping for food and other
needed items, nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent
training;
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18.2.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of mental health conditions that are provided by licensed
professionals. Component services are crisis Interventions:
counseling; individual, family, or group therapy sessions; the
prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of
therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems;

18.2.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient,
treatment of medical conditions when provided by licensed medical
professionals;

18.2.2.13. Outreach Sen/ices. The costs of activities to engage persons for the
purpose of providing immediate support and intervention, as well as
identifying potential program participants, are eligible;

18.2.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment; group and
individual counseling, and drug testing are eligible. Inpatient
detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are
ineligible:

18.2.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) {15);

18.2.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of asslstance.consists of paying for utility
. deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

18.2.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR
57B.53(e) (1) • (16) of this section is being directly delivered by the
recipient or subrecipient, eligible costs for those' services are
described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

18.12.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not-described as eligible costs under this
.section is-not an eligible cost of providing supportive services using
Continuum of Care , program funds. S.taff training and. costs of
obtaining professional licensure or certifications needed to provide
supportive services are not eligible costs; and

18.2.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent
for program participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth;
persons living with HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

18.3. Rental Assistance

18.3.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families.

^ 1.8.3.2; Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit
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receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through other federal,
State, or local sources.

18.3.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR
578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and may be:

18.3.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

18.3.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

18.3.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

18.3.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed
2 months of rent.

18.3.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the
landlord, in addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's
rent.

18.3.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable,
as determined by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,
quality, amenities, facilities, and management and maintenance of each
unit.

18.3.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to- exceed one
month's rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant. For Leasing funds only: Properly damages may be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security deposits.

18.3.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
■  licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,

and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

18.3.9. The Contractor shall provide one of the following types of rental assistance:
Tenant-based. Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as
described in 24 CFR 578.51.

18.3.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which
program participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which
to reside. When necessary to facilitate the coordination of

■ supportive services, recipients, and subrecipients may require
program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period
of participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a
specific area for the remainder of their period of participation. Short
and medium term rental assistance provided under the Rapid Re-
Housing program component must be tenant based rental
assistance.
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18.3.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between.the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be
a private, nonprofit organization, or a community rhental health-
agency established as a public, nonprofit organization. Program
participants must reside in housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

18.3.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with
the owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease
the subsidized units to program participants. Program participants
will not retain rental assislance.if they move.

18.3.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistance, program participants must enter into a lease agreement
for a term of at least one year, -which is terminable for cause. The
leases must be automatically renewable upon expiration for terms
that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice by.
either party.

T8.4. Administrative Costs:

18.4.1.' Eligible administrative costs include:

18.4.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part,.for the
payment of project administrative costs related to the planning and
execution of Continuum of Care activities-. This-does not include
staff and overhead costs directly related to carrying out activities
eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because those costs
are eligible as part of those activities;-and

18.4.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall
program management, coordination, monitoring and-evaluation.
These costs include, but are not limited to, necessary expenditures
for the foilowing:-

18.4.1.3. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or
other staff engage in program administration.

18.4.1.3.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include
the entire salaiy, wages, and related costs allocable.tp the
program of each person whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program, involve program administration
assignmefits. or the pro rate share of the salary, wages, and
related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. This Contractor may only use one
of these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the. following:

18.4.1.3.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and
amendments to those budgets and schedules;
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18.4.1.3.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with
program requirements;

18.4.1.3.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements
with subrecipients and contractors to carry out program
activities;

18.4.1.3.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and
compliance with program requirements;

18.4.1.3.1.5. Preparing reports, and other documents related to the
program for submission to HUD;

18.4.1.3.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring
•  findings;, .

18.4.1.3.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related
to the program submission to HUD;

18.4.1.3.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

18.4.1.3.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary
responsibilities with regard to the program include such
assignments as those described in sections
20.5.1.3.1.1. through 20.5.1.3.1.8. above." Exhibit C,
Payment Terms.

18.4.1.3.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying
out the program; ■

18.4.1.3.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party
contracts or agreements, including such services as
general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services;

18.4.1.3.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for
administration of the program, including such goods
and services as rental or purchase of equipment,
insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

18.4.1.3.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of
providing training on Continuum of Care requirements
and attending HUD-Sponsored Continuum of Care
trainings; and

18.4.1.3.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the
environmental review responsibilities under 24 CFR
578.31.
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18.5. Leasino:

When the Contractor Is leasing the structure, or porllons thereof, grant funds
rnay be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or
structures, or portions thereof, to provide housing or supportive services to
homeless persons for up to three (3) years. Leasing funds may not be used
to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their parent .
organization, any other related organization(s). or organizations that are
members of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless
HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

18.5.1. Requirements:

18.5.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all orpart
of a structure or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable iri
relation to rents being charged In the area for comparable space. In
addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents currently being charged .
by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

18.5.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for
individual, housing units, the rerit paid must reasonable in relation to
rents being charged for comparable units, taking Into account the
location, size, type, quality, arhenlties, facilities, and rhanagement
services. In addition; the rents may not exceed rents currently being
charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-delermined fair market rents.

18.5.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are Included in the rent, these
utilities nnay be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided
by landlord, these utility costs are operating costs, except for
supportive service facilities. If the structure is being used- as a
supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a supportive
service cost.

18.5.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor
may use grant funds to pay security deposits. In an amount not to
exceed 2 months of actual rent. An advance payment of last month's
rent may be provided to the landlord in addition to security deposit
and payment of the first month's rent.

18.5.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements
and subleases are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

18.5.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. .Occupancy charges
and rent from program participants must be calculated as provided
In 24 CFR 578.77.

" 18.5.1.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from
program participants are program Income and may be used as
provided under 24 CFR 578.97.
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18.5.1.8. Transition. Refer to 2.4CFR 578.49(b)(8)

18.5.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in
comparison to rents charged in the area for similar housing units.
Documentation of rent reasonableness must be kept on file by the
Contractor.

18.5.1.10. The, portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-
determined fair market rents.

18.5.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not
be given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

18.5.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord
for security deposits.

18.5.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building thal it already owns to itself.

18.5.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all Stale and local housing
codes, licensing requirements, the-Lead-Based Pairit Poisoning
Prevention Act. and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in
which the housing is located regarding the condition of the structure
and operation of the housing or services.

18.5.1.15. the Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities
(heat, hot water); however, the amount charged may not exceed the
maximum amounts specified in HLJO regulations (24 GFR 578.77).
Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet
access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's

'  option.

18.5.1.16. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this
Contract, or counted as match, complete weekly or bi-weekly
timesheets:

19. Contractor Financial t^^anaoement System

19.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant
funds and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to
funds disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor.

19.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies
with 2 GFR part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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CERTIFICATION REGAROINQ DRUG>FftEE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 ol the General Provtsions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1958 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certiftcation;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE i CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificate's for
.each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification, the certificate'set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant' False
certification or violation of the certiftcation shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
teimination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send. It to; .

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street.
■ Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it vnll or will continue Co provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees'that (he unlawful manufacture, distribution. ■

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;'

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1.- The dangers of drug abuse in tfie workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free worlcplace:
1.2.3. Any avaliable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalUes that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making Itareiquirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) thai, as e condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and -
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a viotalion of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under,
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

0  o
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such-notices. Notice shall include the
identlficdtion number(s) of each affected grant; \

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
■ subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabililation Act of 1973. as
amer>ded; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to panidpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3.1.4. 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided t>elow the site(s) for the perfcrmance of work done in
connection with the spedfic grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city.- county, state, zip code)' (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

hi
Date ' Nam'e:

ctt
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CgRTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to.corhply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Pubfic Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the folJowIng Certification:

US DEPARTMEf^ OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS "
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS •

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Teniporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medlcaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned pertlfies, to the l)esl of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

• 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or vdll be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or ernployce of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer .or employee of Congress, or ari erripioyee of a Member of Congress in .
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal. amendmenL or
modification of any Federal contract,'grant, loan, or cooperative a'greement (and by specific mention
sub^rant'ee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or allempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contraci, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation ol fact upon which reliance was placed whan this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for rnaking or entering Into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352. TiUe 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally ol not less than $10,000 ar>d not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vei>dor Name:

iMP-O
Dale HimeTiile: cto ^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MAHERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 o1 the General Provisions agrees to comply vrilh the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as idenlified in Sections 1.11 af>d 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submlhlng this proposal (convaci). the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
.of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospeclive participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The ceiUncalion or explanation will be
considered in conneclion witfi the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determinaiion vrhelher to enter into this transaction.. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In (his clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this tmnsaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
avaiiabte to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for-cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary, partidpanl learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' "debarred,* 'suspended.' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'participant.' 'person.' "prlrnary covered transaction,' "principal.' 'proposal.' and
'voluntarily excluded,* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR P.art 76. See the
attached-'definitions.

6. The prospeclive primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction l>e entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered •
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.'

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered Iransaclion may rety upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
tower tier covered transaction that it Is nof debarred, suspended, ineiiglble, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant rnay
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be conslrued to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certiftcalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Ccrtirc«ik>n Reptrding Ocbarmenl, Suspension Vendor Initials
And Olher Responsbity Mottars
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the F^eral government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause-or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant cenifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals:

,11.1. are riot presently debarred, suspertded. proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
^  voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment render^ against them (or commission of fraud or a criminal offense in

.  connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or locdl)
.transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity ,
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)>
of this certincaUon; and.

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/pro^Msal had one or more public
(ransdctlons (Federal. Slate or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. V^ere the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certincation, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. 6y signing and submitting (his lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

. defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it end its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proceed for debarment, declared IneligiUe, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the pro'spective.lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

•prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It Nvill
include this clause entllled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lov/er Tier Covered Transactions.* without modificatjon In all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

5-hn 1
Dale ' Name;

Title:

Exnibil F - CoitiflcaUon Regtrtfina Oebarmcnt. Suspension Vendor INiists
And Other Responsibility Matiers
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CERTIFICATtON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAiNING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

.  the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1958 (42 U.S.C, Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, ellher in employment practices-or ir^
the deMvery of services"or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discrlminafing. either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), wh'tch prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In.any program or activity;

- the Americans with Oisabilitie? Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sermons 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opporturjity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the" Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683. 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination oh the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the •
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. U does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 20 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrlminallon; Equal-Employment Opportunity; Pol'icles

■ and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organiralions); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making •
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (IJ.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whislleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense AuthorlzaUon
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for .
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblowef Prolections. which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activifies in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of 9ie certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment. ^

ExhtoUG
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State adminislraiive agency makes a Tinding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified In Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees by sigr^ture of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections l.tl and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

r. By signing and submitting (his proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

-  .

Dale ' • Name: riKf1<e.K

™ (^^0 ̂
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires thai smoking no\ be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity arxJ used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education.
Of library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
(aw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In lhe Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
^1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor ideniiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiricatlon:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: /Kc*

ichiun H - certiiicaiion Kegaroing vonaor initwii
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

0) Pennitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. • 'Covered Entity" has the mejaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. ■

e. 'Data Aoareoation' shall.have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the terrh "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.'

g.. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2'of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 46 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^ ^

3r20U Exhiblll Conl/Bctof IniJlols
Health IriMfance Portability Acl
Bvsirtes) Associate Agreemem
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I, 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m'. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected.
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology starwJard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Perls 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Buslness'Assoclate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health InformMlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide, the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all

•  its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitule a'violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. ■ For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operatjons of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under. Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose ariy PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/20 U Exm&ilt Contrnclor tntltots
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that. Covered Entity has agreed to
bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional reslriclions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObtlQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Busir^ess Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
heallh information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health informatiori of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected heallh information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification:

0 The unauthorized person used the protected heallh Information or to .whom the
disclosure was made;

/ ■ 0 Whether the protected heallh Information was actually acquired or vlewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

■ The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessnnent in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with a!) sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received'by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duly to return .or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Conlractof InlUals
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shal) be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37} of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours'at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of-PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.-

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 154.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writien.request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in'a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526".

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered.Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

C

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. in the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI -
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity.- Covered Entity shall have the

. responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However; if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business .days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, (he
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement^ and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If relurn or
destruction is not feasibie.-or (he disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in

'  the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI-and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible.'for so long as Business ^ y.

3/20U Exhibill CooVflCtOf IfllllaH •
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitalion(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1'64.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's-
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 1 W.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or •
"  • disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522..

to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a.timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasitjle. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary..

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
'shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
. necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered •
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, (he Privacy and
-Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

•c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Eihtoai Conlrsdw Inkialj
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition o( this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHi; return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

ihj Atip^ oi
Name of the 06nti:aclor a

Department of Healih and Human Services

The State ~

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative
Christine Sdntaniello

Name of Authorized Representative

Director, DENS ...

Title of Authorized Representative

6/5/20
Date

Name of Auttforized Representative

C.L0 •
Title of Authorized Representative -

57^-7 fyo
Date •

3/2014 EKhlblH

Heellh InsviftflCQ Portability Act
Buaineis AtiodatQ Agraemeni
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCr
ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AccountabtlUy and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October '1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensatbn Information), the
Department of Health and'Human Ser>nces (OHHS) must report the followir>g Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requiren>ents;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award '

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding acUon
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by Ihe'end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor Identified In.Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-262 arid Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identifted in Seclbns 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named CchlrBCtor agrees to provide needed Information as outJined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of Die .Federal
Financial Accountability-end Transparertcy Act.

Contractor Name:

s]^il9v
Date Name:

Title: ^

E]tf\[b!t J - CertiTicellon Regarding the Fadord Funding Contractor inttiab
AccovntabiSly And Traniparency Ad (FFATA) CompBsnce

cu/OHHvnoru Pogo1^2 Oato
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.  FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to Ihe
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for your entity is; '.

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts.
loar\s grants sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) 825,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts; loans, grants, subgranls. and/or.
cooperative agreements? ' .

NO YES

if the answer to P2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Inlemal Revenue Code of •
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the ar^swer to d3 above'is NO. please answer Ihe following:
)

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows;

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name;

Amount;

Amount;

Amount;

Amount;

Amount:

CUOKKVnOTO

Exhiba J - Ctrtificalion Regsrding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Tfanjparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
-  unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
' authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable,

information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. * Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in sectior*
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident*, shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61.; Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.-

3. 'Confidential Information' or "Conndenlial Data' means all confidenlial information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal iriforrpation including without limitation, Substance'

•  Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Prolected Health Information, and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Informalion also includes any and alt information owned or managed by
(he State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and'
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted,
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by-

. state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal. Information (PI). Personal'Financial

.  Information (PFI), Federal Tax Informalion (FTI), Socia.l Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor', other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or'denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through.theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

vs. Lull updale 1{V09/lft Exhibit K Conlradof InitJala *
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmll) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is lir^ked .
or linkable,to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden

. name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards tor Privacy of IndividuallY Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health information" (or "PHI") has the same rneaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information" in the HlPM Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160,103: .

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at-45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that.renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized' individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. ,

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor.

.  including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule. '

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Iriformation In response to a

vs. L8$lupd»«e <(W)9/18 ContiidorInlUaU
OKHS ln>onn»(ion
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has-an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If OHMS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End .User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data betwieen applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email! End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
-  email, is encrypted and being sehl to arid being received by email addresses of

persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. Erid User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transrriit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriiried ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If Erid User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. LoHupd«lolW09/ie ExhibilK Coftlftcio/Initlats.
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed;

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP)ralso known as Secure File Transfer Protocol.'lf
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Conndential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices.-If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. -

HI. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The.Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 -days to destroy the' data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical tocalion requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Inforrnatibn for contractor provided systems.

3.. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its Er>d
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have'
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. LmI update 1(V09/16 Eihrbil K Contioctorlnillai).
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-defection and firewall protection.

6. . The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. pisposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confldentiial Information on Its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Conlractor.or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

• sanitizatipn. or otherwise physically destroying the • media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sahltization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certificaH'on to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,

• regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenwise specified; within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
• Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data-using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
•Contract. Coniracior agrees to completely destroy all.electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper securily controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation,- use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).

Q /{fP
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3. The Contractor will maintair> appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State .of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an .internal process -or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorizaliori policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and corriputer use agreements as part of
obtaining and rriaintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HI PAA-Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance -with the

.  agreement.

9. The -Contractor wHl work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Departnnent and

•  Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The .survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed-when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call «nler services necessary due to
the breach.

12: Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,-
but not limited to. provisions .of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 tJ.S.C. § 552d), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 arid 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law. .

'i

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conndentialily of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must .provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hUps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
•procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification .and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to (he State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor rnust reslrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss. theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disdosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored'in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometrlc identiners, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Oata. Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when

' stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must l>e maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by. a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with ariyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHHS
reserves the right 'to conduct onsile inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy-Officer and Security Officer of any
Security- Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 ■ 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify,Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is involved Inlncidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents .
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, end. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
'applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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